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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members

Your Directors presenting the 22nd Annual Report together with the audited accounts of yourcompany for the financial year ended March 31,,2023.

Financial Results

Your company's performance for the financial year ended March 3L,2023 is surnmarized below:

(Amount in (t) lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period

i

Particulars For the finaircial year ended

31.03.2023 3L.03.2022

lncome:

Reven ue from Operations 48"40 41..77

Other lncome
32.99 32.20

Total lncome
81,39 73.97

Expenses:

Operating.Expenditure
78.70 7L.28

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 1..02 0.40
Total Expenses

79.72 71..68
Profit Before Tax (pBT)

L.67 2.29
Tax Expense

L.73 0.03

Profit for the year(pAT)
-0.06) 2.2b

Other Comprehensive lncome (Net of tax) 0.40

0.34
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Company's Performance & Future Prospects

During ifre period under review, the coffiny achieved revenue of Rs. 48'40 lacs EBITDA Rs' 2'69

lacs, PBT of Rs. 1.57 lacs and PAT of Rs. (-0.06) Iacs as compared to the revenue of Rs' 41'77 EBITDA

Rs. 2.59 lacs, PBT sf Rs. 2.29 lacs and PAT of Rs. 2.26 lacs respectively in the previous year' 
..

The sales of the company have increased by L6% as compared to previous year

Share Capital

As on 31st March, 2023, paid up share capital of the Company was Rs' 10, 00,000 divided into 10'000

equity shares of Rs.100/- edch. There was no change in share capital of the Company during the

Financial Year 2022-23

Dividend and Transfer to Reserves

tn terms of the Dividend Distribution policy, as per sEBl (Listing obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, equity shareholders of the company may expect dividend if the

company is having surplus funds and after taking into consideration the relevant internal and

external factors as mentioned in the said policy. Accordingly, considering the cash position, fund

requirements for growth of business of your company and the brought fo.rward losses, the Board of

Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 3t' 2023'

Accordingly, no amount is also proposed to be transferred to the reserves of your Company'

Change in the nature of business, if any

There has been no change in the nature of business ofthe company during the financial year 2o22-23'

Subsidiary comPanies

The company does not have any subsidiary during the year under review' The company itself is a

L00% subsidiary of Lee & Nee Softwares (Exports) Ltd'

Deposits from Public

Your Company has not accepted any kind of deposit from the public under Cha#er V of the

Companies Act, 20J-3 during the year under review and as such no amount on account of principal or

interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet'

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

There are no Loans, Guarantees and lnvestments made under the provisions of section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review'

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the Financial Position between the end of the

Financial Year and date ofthe report

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company'
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which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statement relates

and the date ofthis Report.
tlr

Details of Significant and Material orderi passed by the Regulators /Courts / Tribunals lmpacting

the going concern status and the Company's operations in future

During the financial year 2022-23, there are no significant and mbterial orders passed by any

negulitors / Courts /Tribunals, which impacts the going conceln status and the Company's

Operations in future. 
,;

I

Human Resource Management

Attracting, enabling and reiaining talent has been the cornerstone of the Human Resource function

and the results underscore the important role that human capital plays in critical strategic activities

such as growth.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the

best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
*

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed

along with proper qxplanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for

that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the ComPanY and such

internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effeclively. '€

(f) the Dirdctors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws ancj that such systems were adequate and operating effectively'

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

your Director Mrs. Arpita Gupta retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible

offers herself for reappointment.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary

relationship or transactions with the company, other than sitting fees, commission, if any and
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reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board

/Committee of the Company/or otherwise.

q
Declaration by lndependent Directors

r -l^ .--r

The provisions of Sectio n 149 for appointment of lndependent Directors do not apply to the

company.

Board Meetings I

The Company has conducted four Board meetings during the financial year under review

- Policy on Appointment of iirector and Remuneration

The provisions of Section L78(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee are not applicable to the Company.

lnternal Financial Control System and their adequacy

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial

Statements. The controls are adequate for ensuring the orderly and efficient contuct of the business,

including adherence to the Company's policies, the safe guarding of assets, the prevention &

detection of frauds & errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely

preparation of relia ble financial i nformation,

Cost Records and Cost Audit

Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of

section t4g (t) of the iompanies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried out

by the Company.

Auditors

Statutory Auditors

M/s. N H Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kol[ata (Firm Registration No. 3275tlE),

were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company from the conclusion of TwEfrty First (21st)

Annual General Meeting (AGM) till conclusion of Twenty Sixth (26th) AGM to be held in the year

2027, as re'quired undei Section 139 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014.

For the year under review, the statutory auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the independence

criteria required under the Companies Act, 2013'

The Auditors, Report contains 'Unmodified Opinion' on the financial statements of your Company, for

the year ended 3Lst March, 2023 and there are no qualifications reservations or adverse remarks in

their report.



Secretarial Auditol

pursuaTrt to the provisiorrs of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 201-3 read with the Companies

(Appointment and Renrurrt:ration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board of Directors of the

Company has appointed iVrs. Rasna Goyal, a Practicing Company Secretary in Practice (CP No -9209)

to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financialyear 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit

Report in Form MR-3, for the financial year ended March 31,,2023 is annexed as'Annexure-t'to this

Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse

remarks.

Qualifications in Audit RePorts

The statutory auditor's report and the secretarial audit report do not contain any qualifications,

reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. Secretarial audit report is attached to this report.

Risk Management PolicY

The Company has systt-.r;rs for lnternal Audit and Enterprise Risk assessment and mitigation' On a

quarterty basis, sumnr,rr,,,of key findings is presented to the Board committee with increasing

globalization and unpreci:ciented changes in business environment, the Company on a periodic basis

identifies these uncertairrlies and after assessing them, formulates short-term and long-term action

plansto mitigate any risk'which could materially impactthe Company's long-term goals and Vision'

ln the opinion of the Board there is no such risk which may threaten the present existence of the

Company.

Secretarial Standards

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS -2, relating to'Meetings

of the Board of Directoi-s' and ;General Meeting' respectively, have been duly followed by the

Company.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle !Slower Policy

The Company has adolttc,.t a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors,

employeesand others wlro are associated with the Company in confirmation with Section 177(9) of

the Act and Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations to report their concerns about unethical behavior,

actual or suspected fraucl or violation of the Company's code of conduct. The Policy provides for

adequate safeguards against victimization of Employees/ Directors who availthe mechanism"
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Corporate Social Responribility lnitiatives

The Company has hot Lio,,elopecl ancl imp_lemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as

the said provisions are r(. r applicable to the Company'

Extract of Annual Return

The Extract of the /\nrrrla i-eturn iri form MGT-g is not required to be annexed to the Board's report

as per the amendmel! io sectron 92(3) of the companies Act, 2013 and rules framed therein.

However, companies hav ng a website are required to provide the web link of the same, wherein the

annual return in form N'lC I-7A shall be uploaded.

As the company does rrot have any website, a copy of the Annual return will be available at the

registered office of the comPanY

Particulars of Employee s and related disclosures

There are no employet ; , :lling wilnin the provisions of section 13a(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with Rule 5(2) a cl rr(3) of I'he Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 20'L.r

Employee Stock Option Scheme

Presently, the Compan) 1,.)es not have any Employee Stock Option/Purchase Scheme

Policy on Prevention ci'Scxual Harassment

your Company has in pia,-e a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at work place in accordance

with the provisions ol Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at

Workplace Act, 2013. il]1l policy aims at prevention of harassment of women employees and lays

down the guidelines fr.,r rtlentification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. During the

year under review thi rr. were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at

Workplace (Preventio;r i :i.rhibition and Redressal) Act, 2013'

Conservation Of Enery , i ,rchnology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo Pursuant To

provisions Of Section I i Jf The Cornpanies Act, 2013 Read With The Companies (Accounts) Rules,

20t4.

The Statement pursuar,r .i section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the

Company's (Accounts) ll,rles 2014 do not apply to our Company. There was no foreign exchange

inflow or outflow during 'ite year under review.

Other Disclosures

a)your Company has no: issued shares with differentialvoting rights and sweat equity shares during

the year under review
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b) There are no proceedings initiated/pending against your Company under the lnsolvency and

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company'

.?r

c) There were no instances where your Cbmpany required the valuation for one time settlement or

while taking the loan from the Banks or Financial institution'
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,

The Members of M/s LENSEL WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LtMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of M/s LENSEL WEB SERVICES

PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31't March, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, notes to the Standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the ?ct') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 37,2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements"
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('ltAl') together with tir6 ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of. the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 37,2023.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

CK



We have determined the there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

lnformation other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon.

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include

the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial sta+ments does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially missgted.

lf, based on the work we havb performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The figures of the year ended 31'tMarch,2022 are based on the annual financial statements that
were audited by the erstwhile auditors whose report dated 26th May,2022 expressed an unmodified

opinion. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in

Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements

that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), financial performance (profit

or loss including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian

Accounting Standards (lND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudenU and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, e:' has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of birectors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individuallyor in the aggregate, they could reasonably be



expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professionaljudgment and

maintainprofessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 1a3(3)(l) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressingour opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial

controls overfinancial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimatesand related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Managementand Board of Directors use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or,

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to
express an opinion on the Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financialstatements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the statements of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defic;-ncies in

internal controlthat we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the



adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order") issued by the
- Central Government of lndia in tsfms of sub-section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the

Annexure ,A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to

the extent aPPlicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have soug{nt and obtained allthe information and explanations which to the best

of our knowte,;Oge anU belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c.

d.

f,

ob

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other

comprehensive lncome), the cash Flow statement and statement of changes in

equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the lndian

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended'

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st

March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31st March, 2023from being appointed as a director in terms of

Section L64 (21of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate RePort in Annexure 'B'.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201"4,as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position in its Standalone Financial Statements. - -..s

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

The Company did not have any amount which had fallen due and required to be

transferred to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

other than as disclosed in notes to accounts in Note No.4.3 no funds (which are

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned

orinvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or

kind of funds by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign

entity ("lntermediaries"),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the lntermediary shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

L

ilt.

IV

in other persons or entities identified in any

the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
I

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

provide any guarantee, or the

e.
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(b)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received

by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding

Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") q1 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

t

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing hascome to our notice that has caused

us to believe that therepresentations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement'
:

The Board of'Directors of the company have not proposed any dividend for the year.

Hence compliance in accordance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f April L,2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

with respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section

L97(76!. ofthe Act:

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

managerial remuneration has been paid/ provided to its directors duting the year by

the Company.

FoTNHAGRAWAL&
CHARTERED ACCOU

Fi

h.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25thMa y, 2023

Membership Number:
UDIN :23129179BGVWPW9261

Partner
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPEN DENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

(REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER 'REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGUIATORY

REQUIREMENTS, OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF M/s LENSEL

wEB SERVTCES PRTVATE LtMTTED)

ln terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state thaU

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets, by which all
fixed assets are verified by the management according to the program of periodical

physical verification in a phased manner which in our opinion is reasonable having regard

to the size of the Company and the nature of its fixed assets. According to the information
&explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical

verification.

c) The title deed of the immovable property i.e., leasehold building (which are included under
the head 'Property, Plant and Equipment') are held in the name of its Holding Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year.

e) As per information and explanations provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 3L,2023 for holding any

benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in

2016) and rules made there under.

(ii) The Company is in the business of providing software services and does not have any physical

inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances or guarantee or securityto any

other entity during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the
loans given are prima facie, not prejudicialto the interest of the Company.

(iii)



(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment

of principal and payment gf interest has not been stipulated but it is repayable on

demand and is regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, in case of loans given, the repayable is on

demand; hence clause of overdue for more than ninety days does not apply in respect of

loans given.

(e) According to the information 5nd explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the over dues

of existing loans given to the same party'

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of th.b records of the Company, the Company has not provided any new

loans which are repayable on demand and the balance outstanding as at 31.03.2023 are

given belowt 
(Amount in Rs. Lacs)

All parties -including
related parties*

Promoters Related Party

Aggregate ofloans

- Repayable on Demand 276.09 NIL NIL

Total Loan 276.09 NIL NIL

Percentage ofLoans to Total
loans

100% NIL NIL

*The amounts reported are gross amounts including interest accrued (wherever applicable), without

considering provision made.

(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not given loans, guarantees, security or made any investment which needs to comply

with the section 185 and 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year'

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any

deposits during the year fr:om the public within the meaning of directives issued by the

Reserve Bank of lndia and provisions of Sections 73 to76 or any other relevant provisions

of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. Hence, Clause 3(v) of the Order is not

applicable to the CompanY.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section

143(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. --*$:

(vii) a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing with

appiopriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including lncome Tax, Goods and Service

Tax, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent

applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of the Goods and Service Tax, lncome Tax and Cess and other statutory dues were in

arrears as at 31't March, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.



b) According to information and'explanation given to us, there are no dues in respect of
Goods and Service Tax, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Duty of excise,

Value Added Tax and Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
to the extent applicable on account of any dispute.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered

or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1951 (43 of 1951)

dLring the year. 
"1

(ix) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us;

(a)The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence,

reporting under clause 3(ixXa) of the Order is not applicable.
(b)The Company has nqt been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

or any other lendeil
(c) The Company has not taken any term loans during the year and there are no outstanding

term loans at the beginning of the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ixXc) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) During the year, the Company has not taken any funds on a short term basis. Accordingly,

this clause is not applicable.
(e)The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet

the obligations of its subsidiary.
(f) The Company has not raised any loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary

during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a)The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, Clause 3(xXa) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.
(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during,the year.
(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of
this report.
(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints

received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is

not applicable. "" *€

(xiii) ln our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section L77 and 188 of the Companies Act,

where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) ln our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit repbrts issued to the Company during the yearand

covering the period.up to 31st March, 2023.

(xv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, during the year

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any of its directors or
directors of its holding company, subsidiary company, or persons connected with such



directors and hence provisions of section 792 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable

to the ComPanY.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of

lndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi) (a), (b), (c) & (d) of the Order is not

applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and

the immediately preceding financial year. I

q
(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.M/s

Sonu Jain & Associates has not been re-appointed as auditor after the completion of audit

term of 5 years as required underthe Companies Act 2013. We the M/s N.H Agrawal &

Associates has taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the

outgoing auditors.

r
(xix) On the basis of the firmhcial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets

and payment of finaniial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements

and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,

which causes us to believe that any materialiuncertainty exists as on the date of the audit

report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of

balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet

date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the

audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

Company as and when theY fall due. .

(xx) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no

unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant

to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xxXa) and 3(xxXb) of the Order are not applicable.

For N H AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCO

Firm's Registration Nt

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25thMay,2023

Partner
Membership Number: t2911 -o

U Dl N :231291798GVWPW9261



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR:S REPORT

(REFFERED TO lN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER'REPORT

REQUIREMENTS'OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THI

WEB SERVICES PRIVATE

Our audit involves Performing
internal financial control system

ON OTHER LEGALAND REGUIATORY

E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF M/s LENSEL

LTMTTED)

Report on the !nterna! Financiat Controts over Financiat Reporting under clause (i) of Sub-section 3

of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'l)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lensel Web Services Pvt.

Ltd. (the Company") as of 31 March 2023in conjurlction with our audit of the Standalone IND AS

financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSI BILTY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial control over Financial

Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal

controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal FinancialControls Over FinancialReporting

issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AU DITOR,S RESPONSI BILTY
"-.q.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting of'the Company based on our Audit. We conducted our Audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance

Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of

internal financial controls. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate internalfinancialcontrols over financial reporting were established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects'

procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit

of lnternal Financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of inte



financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of iqternal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's internalfinancial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF !NTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROTS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
'i

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company ; Ql
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and

that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAT CONTROTS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finan,cial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material-misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting torfuture periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia
(the "Guidance Note").

-<

Place: Kolkata

Date: 26thMay,2023

FoTNHAGRAWAL&
CHARTERED

Firm's Registration Num

Membership N umber: L29L7 I
UDIN :23129179BGVWPW9251

n

a:'7 5't t r



Lensel Web Services Private Limited

CIN: U72900W82001 PTC093088

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

q (AIl amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of Significant Accounting Poilcies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

a

1to30

For N H Agrawal & Associates For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered

Lensel Lim
Firm's 11E Ltd.

."{r1
ia -!"*v t*1L

Arpita Gupta Fa
rL Director Cirgglr,

(DlN : 02839878)
Director

Ag (DlN : 03061 122)

l\.4embership

UDIF.\ ,,29l,tit+q B(t_vWPv,J 1Z a t
Place. Kolkata
Date 26th f\lay,2023

Particulars Notes
As at

31 March 2023
As at

31 March 2022
I. ASSETS
Non-current Assets
(a) Property,Plant and Equipment
(b) Financial Assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Loans

(c) Other Non-Current Assets

.,1

Current Assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) l"rade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(b) Current Tax Assets (net)
(c) Other Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

Borrowings

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
(c) Other Non -Current Liabilities

Current Liabillties
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

J

4.1

4.2

4.3

5

6.1

6,2

7
o

I
10

11

12

13

14

3.47

3.00

40.91

276.09
292 90

0.43

29.97
0.68

4.10

3.93

44.45

40.91

312 80

0.53

12.69

580
4.34

651.s5 697.00

10.00

/ J.Utl

556.06
1 '10

303

830

10.00

72 72

606.7B

0.1 9

/.J I

651.55 697.00

a



Lensel Web Services Private Limited

CIN: U72900W82001 PTC093088

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Poilcies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For N H Agrawal & Associates
Chartered
Firm's 1E

1to30

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

, LensBJ.Web Services Private Lim
Lensei \ryeb $er.",ices p,4, l"tLl.

ite{-enselWeb

Arpita Gupta -Ld\r u4\r
Director Oiiector
(DrN 02839878) (DlN : 03061 122)

I amount in Lacs, unless otherwise stated

2

Lrd

ury

lVlembership Number
uD?N : L% 12'1t ?
Place: Kolkata
Date 26th l,ftay,2023

-7o

a 0 0'LV w P1.'f 1O-A t

Particulars Note
Year ended

31 March 2023
Year ended

3'l March 2022

48.40
32.99

41 77
32 20

81.39 73.97

8.40
42 32

102
27 98
79.72

891
39 78
040

22 59
71.68

1.67 2.29

038
058
077 003
1.73 0,03

(0.06) 2.26

0.54
(0 14)

0.40

0.34 2.26

lV. Expenses
Pu rchases
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Total expenses

Vlll. Other comprehensive income
(a) ltems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remasurement of post-employment benefit obligations
Tax relating to these items

(b) ltems that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Tax relating to these items
Other comprehensive income

lX. Total comprehensive income for the year
X. Earning per equity share

(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Vll. Profit for the year (V-Vl)

l. Revenue from operations
ll. Other income
lll.Total lncome(l + ll)

V. Profit before tax (lll - lV)
Vl. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax
(2) Tax Expenses of Prior Years
(3) Deferred Tax

Total Tax Expenses

22

15
to

17
,1 

B

19

(0 60)
(0 60)

23 00
23 00

3?75fi9
RE3U. ito



t
'Lensel Web Services Private Limited

ctN : [J72900W82001 PTC093088

Statement of Cah Flow for the yeir ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'lndirect tVlethod' as set out in Ind AS 7,
"Statement of Cash Flows"

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For N H Agrawal For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered

1E

Lensel Web Services Private
Firm's

Pa rtner
,,iffi,1-:"-,,,*d[$: h

U

Membership Number 129179
LID9N'. L\\ 29 t +q B GLv v\'P W1L0' I
P ace. Kolkata
Date: 26th May,2023

Pafticulars Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Cash Flow from Opearting Activities
(a) Profit Before Tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation
Gratuity
lnterest lncome
Other lncome
Operating ProfiU (Loss) before working capital Changes

(b) Working Capital changes:
Decrease/ ( lncrease) in trade receivables
Decrease/ (lncrease) in loans
Decrease/ (lncrease) in other non-current assets
lncrease/ ( Decrease) in Trade Payables
lncrease/ ( Decrease) Deferred tax liabilities
lncrease/ ( Decrease) in other current liabilities
lncrease/ ( Decrease) in non-current liabilities

Cash generated from Operating Activities

lncome Taxes Paid

Net Cash from Operating Activiites Total of (A)

2 Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities
Purchase of Property, Pant and Equipment
Sale of lnvestments
Decrease/(lncrease) in Non Current Loans
Decrease/(lncrease) in other Non Current Assets
Decrease/(lncrease) in Other Non Current Liabilities
lnterest received

Other income
Net Cash from lnvesting Activiites Total of (B)

3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of Borrowings

, Total of (C)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (ArB+C)

Add. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (l + ll)

1.02

0.54
(28 70)

2.29

040

(31 e3)
(0 27)

0.10
36.71

\22 65)
5.12
0.91
099
? n?

(25.47l.

(0 26)
270.88

103
017

(2s.51)

(0 e4)

(1 26)

(0 34)

241 37

(1 60) 241 37

(0 55)
41 45

28.70

(1 35)

(161 95)
062

(0.1 6)
31 93

0.27
69.60 (1 30 64)

(50.72) (106.05)
(50.72) (106 05)

tt.ld 468

12 69 801

29.97 12.69

3*7Sl 'tts

Num
(0

(DrN 02839878) (DrN 03061122)

167



= > ao-
\za

Y!a"q

0€ Eil=
= a -;go oeOo-<4,
! a o=6

,:!o:!!_=onu'

!:'41
OHYd
o jj'Xf

co_
< @:

-a

F
o

3

!

T

-@

5

o

3
o

a

@

il
3

E
@

o
o

o

6
o

@

f,
o

- ^-tp -
Eo3

-:6 R

o: = 6

faf

-9o6:o

XEi;
30f
€iq

d<
tr

*6
-rf a

Ff:i:
@5 6

N
!
6
s.
o

6!
o
T
@

:.
oo

o

--: g o-
O:o

; t€
o:m
o 6:.
o 3<

o

5

a

o

6
!
o
a

@
!

:,
oo

X6o

-9d;e
Q!=q

6t*
=9o
E'',
e 3q
<E i;

< 
=!

rd<

-p
!=

.?:oo

6o oo3

!
6
6

a

3

a

r
m

.

f

f
g

1

z
I

@
n{g

ro
:)uo

Lnq<: <: o

1Bi, f,ag; - 9',1=. trrE *@iJo;
3 PL Cli;{ i( (D6'9
@ ' al b- <; rq 6'3:? Ori

h qt2q
E <!iq
=. ''-raqi r*t:
() niYq F'a

r .-lA9I I .

3aH1f;8 !e'l -:

ffini
Q/:

/a i'
< €= "i.

fry,
!<--cY
!i ,,:

o
l

]I
lFc

8o
6';-,
s.-

U

;
-0
{'
p

z't
z
-ap
I

r!>o

3 o" 1€
i; <2.
e;gE
" S€
o Nd

AJ

fo
9o

'io

q=
6:

6ru

d

> I!>
o lYo; 3;:* 9ir< r =to :ol.
: 1!dN! ls o

i
3
o
3,)

g

g

il

io{ I{ I{

44.
tsi;?:

Lq
3

a

2

5

:.

o
I

g

?

o
!
g

{ 9p9. NP

!di
Of, -

{
b

{
NO

{
o
g

1.:
o

l.
t



)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

For the year ended 3f March 2023

SiqnLficant Accountins J: olicies

1. General lnformation:
a) Lensel Web Serr,'rces ,Private Lrrniteci is a company irrnite r .,'i :jitares incorporated and domiciled in

lndia" lt is an ll' Enabled Senice Corrpany based in t ir,,i,; r)f Kolkata . With over 21 years of
experience. lt is ertgaged in the business of developing i,,': ,rriirlr llre website and digital marketing
all over lndra

The Financial Skirements forthe year ended 31 lMarcn 2ti',,.. .' :.re tpproved by the Board of Directors

b) Statement of CotnS:iiance
The financial Statements have been prepared in accordar,:r, u, ih the lndian Accounting Standards
("lND AS") as prescribed by N/linistry of Corporate Affairs irLrirl,,rrlt io Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 (" the Act'). read with the Companies (lndian Accouritir-ri: Sianclards) Rules as amended from
time to time.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

a) The financiei, ,,iai;ments ha're been l)reparerl or (Jorrr ...r -rijirt ,-rrrcjer historical cost basis except
for ceftain fin;;i'iciai assets arrd liabilirres whre rr are me r:,.:r '-i :iL |air value

2.2Use of Estimates and Judgements:

The preparaliorr of the finirncial statement manager r,;r, to rrake estimates, judgements and
assumptions lnat affect the i-eported balances of asscr:.r ri :l lrabilities, income and expenses and
disclosures rciating to the contingent assets ancj iiabrrir:r,r :,irithl date of the Financial Statement.
Although thesi: estimates are based upon rxanaQer"rlr l-:j sest knowledge of current events and
actions, ?ct[rr,', iesults cor-riil l-re differed from these'esit r :,i, ::i

Critical accounting jLrLi,:i;iriieftts alrti ire! sour"c€s of i+st!rilati' , ; -,i.rr l:';i]iy: Key assumptions

Useful ii', r,s of depreuialiie anci amortisai.iiie a$,r 1.,

The corrti,any reviews tiie estimated useful lives r.i' i,i recr'ri-)le or amortrsable assets at each
reDortinl r:eriod. based its expected utility of tiri:, . i:ri,:i Uncertarnties in these estimates
relate to iechnical and economic obsolesce thaL fr)..i ciri:inge the utility of certain items of
propert)/ plant and ecluipment to mai<e the slrir,,. )bsoli3.scence consrdering past trend.
lnventortcs are written done to NRVwhen such Nli',.'i,, jovr,'iti-than their cost.

*;

a)

'En

b) Functional a.,rl trresentatiun Currency
The Financiai :jiatements l.tave been prepared in ,r -,, ,r lluipees (lNR). which is also the
Company's fLr'i,ctional currency The Financial Statem.:ir':r ,uVL. been rounded off to nearest lacs.
up to two placr:s of decimals, unless otherwise stated.



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
For the year ended 31 March 2023

b) Defined benefit Obligation:-
The present value of defined benefit obligation which includes gratuity is determined using

actuarial valuations using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making

various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include

the determination of the discounttate, future salary increase and mortality rates. Due to the

complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is

highly sensitiVe to changes in the assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.

Recognition and meflsurement of provisions, liabilities and contingencies:-
provision and liabilitibb are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will

be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can be reasonably

be estimated. The tirning of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and

circumstances which may be subject to change.

Contingencies in the normal course may be arise from litigation and other claims. Potential

liabilities that are possible but not pr:obable of crystalizing or are very difficult to quantify

reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes to

accounts but are not recognized.

c)

d) lncome Taxes:-
The Company's tax jurisdiction is lndia. Significant judgements are involved in determining

the provisiond for income taxes including amount expected to be paid or recovered for

uncertain tax positions.

e) Fair value measurements:-
When the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance

Sheet cannot be measured based on the quoted prices in the active markets, their fair value

is measured using the valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which

involve various judgements and assumptions.

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies:

a) Overall Considerations :-

The financial statementhave been prepared using significant accounting policies and

measurement basis as summarised below:-

b) Current.versus non-current classification:-
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet on current and non-current

classification:-

a) The asseVliability is expected to be realised/settled in normal operating cycle;

b) The asset is intended for sale or consumption;

c) The asseVliability is held primarily for purpose of trading;

d) The asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after reporting

period;

e) The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a liability for at least twelve months after reporting



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
For the year ended 31 March 2023

f) ln the case of a liability, there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after reporting date;

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current

c) Cash Flow Statement:- r
Cash Flows are reported using the'indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted

for the effects of the transactions of no-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and any items of income or expenses associated with
investing or flnancing cash flows, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company is segregated.

:,:

d) Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible Assets:-

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition:-
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated as cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property,
plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the management.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives):-
The Company, depreciates property, plant and equipment on a pro-rata basis over their
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives of the assets
prescribed under the Schedule ll of the Act, are as follows:

The Company reviews the residual value, useful livesand depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate on a prospective basis. Subsequent expenditures relating to property,
plant and equipment are capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with these will flow and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised in net profit in Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.
The costs and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or upon retirement of the asset and resultant gains or losses recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. *€
De-recognition:-
An item cif property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, when the asset is de-recognised.

e) Taxation
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss comprises the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax except the ones recognised in Other C

in Equity.
sive lncome or directly
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Current lncome Tax
Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
for the reporting period. Current lncome Tax relating to items recognised outside the
profit or loss is recognised &frer in Comprehensive lncome or in Equity
Current lncome Tax for the current and prior periods is recognised at the amounts
expected to be paid to or received from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

The Company off sets current tax assets and liabilities, where it has legally
enforceable rig.$t to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle
on a neJ basis',"or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on the tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e. tax basg).
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent possible that the taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized,
Entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any reduction is reversed to the extent possible

that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be av.ailable.
Deferred tax relating to the items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss
is recognised either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to set off the non-current
assets against non-current liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by

the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its non-current assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

iii) Minimum Alternate Tax
lVlinimum Alternate tax (IVAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future

economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future tax liability, is considered as an

asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will 'pay frG'mal income tax
.IMAT Credits are in form of unused tax credits that are carried fonruard by the
Company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entitlement has been
grouped with deferred tax assets (net). Correspondingly, MAT Credit Entitlement has

been grouped with deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Loss.

0 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:-
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result

of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

i)
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the obligation. The expense relating to provision is presented in the statement of profit and

loss. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Co4tingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible &ligation that arises from the past events whose existence

will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that is not recognised because

it is probable that an outflow resources will be required to seitle the obligation or it cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but

discloses its existence;tr the financial statements.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of the

income is virtually certa'in, related asset is recognised.

Gommitments
Commitments include the amount of the purchase order (net of advances) issued to the

parties for completion of assets. Commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

g) Revenue Recognitioh .
The Company derives revenue primarily from lnformation Technology Services and Solutions.

Revenue is recognised when company transfers control over a product or a service to a

customer.

Time and Material Contract
It is recognised based on time /effort spent and billed to clients

Mainteqance Contract
It is recognised on a pr:o-data basis over the period when such services is rendered

lnterest lncome
lnterest lncome is recorded using Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) for all the instruments

measured at amortised cost. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorler period,

where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of t6e financial asbets cr{o the amortised

cost of financial liability.

Dividend lncome
Dividend lncome is recognised when right to receive is established

h) Employee Benefits Expenses
1. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted

amount in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which related services are

rendered.

2. Defined Contribution Obligations:-



i)
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Gratuity (Un-funded): - The cost is determined using the projected unit credit method

with the actuarial valuation being carried at each balance sheet date by independent

actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is

determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market

yields at the end of theneporting period on government bonds that have terms

approximating to the terms of related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance sheet of

the defined benefit obligation. This cost is calculated in employee benefit expense in

the Statement d Profit and Loss.
:- 

t

Remeasurement gains or losses arising from experience adjustment, demographic

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period, in

which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive lncome. They are included in

retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan

amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in Profit or Loss as past

service cost.

Earnings Per Share:-
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit br Loss for the period

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net Profit or Loss for the year

attributable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share outstanding if

any are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Financial lnstruments:-
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another equity.

Financial Assets
lnitial Recognition and Measurement

*€
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets

not reoorded at fair value through value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade Receivables are initially measured

at the transaction price. Regular way of purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted

for at trade date.

i)

Subsequent Measurement
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified

categories.
. Amortised Cost
. Fair Value through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI)

n Fair Value through Profit or loss (FVTPL)

in three
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the

period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Measured at Amortised Cost: A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held

within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flowsand the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective intergst rate (ElR) method.

tt4easurgd at FVTgCiiA financiat asset is measured at FWOCI if it is held within a business

ffiisachievedbybothcollectlngcontractualcashflowsandsellingthe
financial assetsahd the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FWOCI category are measured initially as well at each

reporting date'at fair value. Fair value measurement is recognised in Other Comprehensive

lncome.

Me,asured_at IVTPL: A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories

are measured at FWPL.
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all

changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash

flows from the asset eipire, or when it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies

for de-recognition under lnd AS 109.

lmpairment of financial assets
ln accordance with lnd AS 10g, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the

measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

EC; is the weighted average of the difference between all the contractual cash flows that are

due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company

expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of

deiault occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to

consider:

-All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the

expected life of the assets.

-Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are rntegral to

the contractual terms.

Trade Receivables
ln respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of lnd AS 109,

whicl-r requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit

losses. Lifetime expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument,

I
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial asset. 12 month ECL area portion of the lifetime ECL which result

from default events that are possible with 12 months from the reporting date, ECL are

measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined

by a*range of Outcomes, taking int6 account the time value of money and other reasonable

information available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecast of future

economic conditions.

Financial Assets
ln respect of other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial

assets has increased significantly since initial recognition. lf the credit risk has not increased

significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount

equal to 1i- month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected

credit losses.
While making the assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring

over the expected life of the financial asset. To make the assessment, Company compares the

risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a

default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers

reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort that is

indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes

that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if

the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Financial Liabilities
lnitial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are at initiallyrecognisedat fairvalue plus any transaction cost that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss which are initially measured at fair value'

Subseq uent Measurement:
For the purpose of. subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following

categories: -

o Fair Value through Profit or loss (FWPL)
. Amortised Cost

Measured at FVTPL financial liability is classified as at FVTPL. lt is classified as held for

trading or it is derivative or it is designated as su

at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gai
ch on initial recognition. Financial liabilities as

ns and losses, including any interest expense

rs recognised in profit and loss --q-

Measured at Amortised: Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest rate method

Derecoqnition#ffipany derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) only when the

obligation specified in the contract discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting fi nancial i nstruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

k) lmpairment of non- financial assets:-



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
For the year ended 31 March 2023

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss. lf any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine'the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates

the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are

also allocated to the individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use" ln assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-

tax discount that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated less that its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, unless the relevant asset at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impqirment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount , but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss has been recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

I) Fair Value:-
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique."ln estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricin$' the asset or liaffiy at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and or disclosure purposes in the
financial statements is determined on such basis.

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability



#

m)

n)

Summary of significant accountlng policies and other explanatory information
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Event after reporting date:-
Where the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions

that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events adjusted within

the financial statements. Otherwise,qvents after the Balance Sheet date of material size

or nature are only disclosed.

Segment Reporting:-
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the Chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is

responsible for allocalifig resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments of the Compafiy.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the chief operating decision maker. As per requirement of lnd AS 108

"segment Reporting" nd disclosures are required to be made since the Company's

activities consists of a single business segment.

€



az=
ico
J!9E
:oe
6 sa
o tDx

;'oidil =o
B iJ<
o@:

:;r

!q
o
0.

o
o
5

!
il
a

o
.2

='o
3
f
o
f

o

=
o

o
3o
o

3

=
o

o

-!-=o-r@o-t660
- .. :' = 

.- .. G
I o I Q oo o
< l2 g o e* sqEFaA=49.
ci e 5 o 59 *
u 9 ooPro*
N + P3g

I x aE
t-oik<

@o

:
I
!o

d

=.o
o

;Ag:E;EHEB;Sg
FT9EdBE=dB[3F::<o=oo=64*Yiq=orAq=oiiNNENdg=dg1oS8'TB HHE fi;*

i A x 
^"iQ.= i = = =o6 5 6 
=N=6 e 5 e E5Qoani-o

N
o
N

ooa
o
f

f

c

oio b I
o

N
io PN !,o bo

:o!Y
3;=

): oo
vov,

ooios
NN

P
o

I
o

!,o
o

9\' '@

N
io
N

ON
ao io

o
o
3
!

oo
bb I I o

o
I
o

T
,

o9co Io
@

o
t)
@

o
o

9
o

9
o

n

@

o

oo
oo bo ill

c
!a

oo
bo 9

@
O o

o
bo

o
b tr

@

aa
oO
fo

o

NN
a
!

Io
pa
fo L

a
s

o
o
o
6'

o I I

Ig

E
o-o

9P o
i\)o

I o
bo

o
I o

o
Ao

og
o
!
o
)

QObb
NN

i! N i! N No i!o

-o
o

O
i, I

N

o
ar

o
N

I
N

I

mzoo
90
64
,f

oori, @
I N

i,
N

o io
I N

i.!{ ir
!

n
Il

Io

{
b b ab)oo

P lD

o
o

!
3
o
E,
5'
A
!
o

T

I

6-

o

o

3
o

q



C]
6',
o
da
oa
or
o
CL

o
-{
6'
o.
oo
o.
o
o

J
3
o
OJ

C'
o
T'
o
o

oo

o

o
lE
l:
=q)

3
o
o

J
o
o
o
3
E

5
o
@

f
of

15-"o.(f
o
=

z
o
f

I

C)
C-ao
=
q)
@
U')
o
f
(D

o_

oa
U)
o)
o

-U
ao
Eof
:<
p-
0):l
o)
f
o-
o
-o
C
a'
3
o
f

no
6'
0)

o

o
3

o
(p
0)il
oo
o
o
o

@cr
E3:l o-
(o

@CT
trg:f o-
(o

rwoco):ao-o
=fdo

o_

T]
ao
o
fg
a
t-
0)
:f
o-

dcr
=o)A
oo
Etl
ci E'
o-rO

€{t

zz

ir)
o0

o
o
U,<a

-9o-tr 0,O'r

='(o

zz z
o

-l

o f o
od o
3aI
E1Ag6=
€oo-o-

ZZ $sr:1€ao
9N- zro oa(, o

J

5: 6-
oQ-oJO
IDA
Ja
Of
o 9_-{ro-

zz z
o aga.3$[i'di' e96-

ga8 *Ba

zz

o
0)
o
o
-l
0)
:fa+oa

9.5'Uc)aoo
d6
=:l6K
5:,i
aO
$o_
o

- a J
f:lf
-d6
a (u_o

: h 
-u^=

rD - vq:-
44

OJhOJ
l-:
doi'<
o)6
-JgrD6
rDoqr_o:f.)c.^o
os

J ord
oco-
JU4+*-
o)^rD
-:lor

Or-3
c6f,
S-=
tvrD:
-o^-

-:lo
o:1.;
+O)O
oo=

+*-
ri -o
= =-4tvo
rDrD3oioJo
6ro€

OJ
!? --{ o

=d{
'ioG
4a.D

rYfD;:o_
='_d U

OJ

rdd 
=;xH

.-a. Jo^
Oq
o+
Fo
=6
=rD

v:l
q)0aom
-Of,cJ
-.rD
g6

ooJ
^o{d'
J-oo)0-o
OJ^
a :,(Do
A' o-

-.o:f+

iri ro
P=
^tu+ui
ro o.,

6O_
rD

f
rD

t

i.i
fi

$r

C

]
,i



(o
o(o

o
A)

3

o

o
o

='
oa
3
o

a

__= 5
$=o o
^:LOA

^cnx o(if*=
o$g)*:-+
oaD ^

oQoo m
t^ v)-o=.
P8 q

-o aA.^+

g)'o
+a
e

o
o

+e
=
I
g.
o-

ro

tl
A)

ao
6
a

OO
c)o
C)O

,TI
q)

^oVoUr<
i- 0J

e
o

F{
Or
C)

rco
.sLo(nooo

z
3(t
o

P
o

!,
O

3
o

a
o)

(.)

=A)

o

No
N)(,

_(,(,
C)O

z
3
o o

o)

(/J

q)

o

No
N
N

ro
ag
€o
ct
a
o
3.
ooa
ll
_t.

0)

or
3
o
o-

=C
-lN(o
oo
€
w
No
c)
'lJ
io
C)(o
(/)
c)
@
@

a
3
3
n)

a
o
a
6'
3
o
!)

0)
oo
o

d
(a

9.
6'
6'a
A'

o.
o

o
ox
tr
OJ

o
a

o
3
A)*
o
o
o

o
o
!)
o

o
o.
o)

=A)

o

No
N(,

=o)
3
o

n
ooo
T
$oI

6-ao
o

o
e
6'.
o
o
0)
o
o.

oa
3
o

a

o

'1'l
g.

o)_

o

't
A)

a
o

d-a

ijqo4*O
o
o.

-l
O)a:Joo_c
-(oI 

-o!od
=

o-
o -.1

-J^'i;,8
39oal

<o
Oa

{
o
g

OJ

(.)

=q)
a

N
C)
N
G)

m-
+4<!o
c, tl,

fJ
aA
Cd35'
9m
--AY'C
P€
aa
O-d

3o

5a
c

Co
o
o-

(,
O

b

-{
o
-l
T

s,
C)
c)

u)
bo

.t1
g.
-
g
o

1'
0);
o

il
a-a

b'gaL+O
o

{
A)r
fo
o_c
-(oI 

-aAo6
t:

OJo -.:
_J:

x o(o

B9oot
<oOr

-lo
g

o
0)

(,

=OJao

No
N
N

=
oo
3
o

m
-o
;+

a

3o

m
_o
C

5
a
C
3o
:l
a
a
C
o
o
o_

5
a
C
3
o
:f
a
C

A
!
A
cn

A
F
A(rl

to
-t
r

A5
5(,t

A5
5
Or

I

=
oa
3
o

a

5A
A
Or

5
AO

3
o

:.t

s)
T'



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informations Ior the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise

4.2. Trade Receivable

ClNr U72900W82001PTC093088

Web Services Private Limited

As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022
Particulars

40.91Unsecured, Considered eood 40.91

40.91 40.91TOTAL

Trade ReceivableHs on 31 March 2023

from the due of

2-3 years More than 3 years TotalPartlculars
Not yet due

Less than 6

m onths

6 months - 1

year
1-2 years

Undisputed Trade Receivable
40.91 40.91(i) Consldered Good

l) Doubtful

Dlsputed Trade Receivable
1(i) Considered Good

(ii) Doubtful
40.91 40.91Total

Trade Receivables as on 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payments

Not yet due
Less than 6

months

6 months - 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Particu lars

lJndl:puted Trade Recelvabie
40.91 40.91(l) Considered Good

(li) Doubtful

Disouted Trade Receivable

(i) Considered Good

(ii) DoubtfuL
40.91 40.91Total

4.3. Loans (non - current)
As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022
Particulars

276.O9 312.80
Unsecured, Considered good

other Loans (lnterest Accrued There on)
276.09 312.80TOTAL

5. Other non-current assets

As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Particulars

1.51 64

113.91

Unsecured, considered good

i) capital Advances

ii) Other Advances

).57.64

135.26

292.90 271.5:TOTAL

6.1. Trade Receivable (Current)

As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022
Particulars

0.43

0.43 0.53
Unsecured, considered good

TOTAL

Trade Receivable as on 31 March,2023
from the due date

2-3 years More than 3 ye3rs Total
Particulars

Not yet due
Less than 6

months

6 months - 1

year
1-2 years

Undisputed Trade Recelvable
0.430.43(i) Considered Good

(ii) Doubtful

Drsputed Trade Receivabie

(r) Considered cood
(ii) Doubtful

0.43Total 0.43

Trade Receivable as on 31 March 2022
from the due date oI payments

2-3 years More than 3 years TotalNot yet due
Less than 6

months yea r

6 months - 1
1-2 years

Particula rs

Undlsputed Trade Recervatlle
0.53(l) Considered Good 0.53

(iii Doubtful

Disputed Trade Receivable

(i) Consldered Good

zf---i!:-(ii) Doubtful
0.s3Total 0.s3

t m.

Davments

pavments



summary of significant accounting poticies and other explanatorY informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise

6.2. Cash and cash

ClNr U72900W82001PTC093088

Web Services Private limited

As at

37 March 2022
As at

31 March 2023Particulars

As at

As at As at

q

31

5.80

31

9.

Advance Tax net of

iii IGST

L2.69

Assets7.

Particulars

2023

4.10

Particulars

8. Other

TOTAT

19.93

10.04

As at

March 2023

4.77

3.57

in current aGounts

cash on hand

0.51

12.18

0.55

3.55

i) Minimum A ternate Tax Credit entltlement

ii) Other Advances

As at

31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2023Particulars

10.00 10.00

10.00 10.00

10.00 10.00

10.0010.00

AUTHORIZED:

10,000 tquity Shares I Prevrous vear: 10,000) of Rs.100 each

TOTAL

TOTAL

lssuEplsuBscRrBEp & PAID-uP CAPlrAt

1.0,000 Equity Shares i Previous year: 10,000) of Rs.100 each

(A) Movement in equity share capital:

AmountNumber of sharesParticulars

10.0010,000.00
Balance at March 31,2022

Movement during the year

As at % Change during

the Year

Lee & Nee Softwares ( Exports) ttd

99.0099.00

31

Shares

Other

No, Sh a res

toattach ed sharesTerms/Rights eq u ity(D)
e ntitl edis to vote anvhare holdEa ch ofer s ha res pervalueI Rsof equrtyonhas ofclass s ha re5 having pa perlaal-ly eq uityCompany

theof theMAG theln olevent Compathetheof reholderssha in liquidationDi rectorsof is theto ensuringBoa rd subject approva Itheby
noto the of hshares delINa llotmenrs eq u ity bythe distributionafte r allof proportionto of the of Com pa ny preferentia Iassetsre5sha wil entltled any remainingbe

Promoter Name

Balance at

ders holdiDetails of

Name of the shareholder

Ltd.Nee Softwares

as on Marchshares held

5% shares in the Com

of Shares

2023

% hol
99.00

1.00
99.00

1.00

As at

31 March 2023

As at

3l Match 2022

As at

31 Match 2022

share. Divldend,

ny, the holders of

As at
2022

As at

31 March 2023Particulars

90.91

(18.2 s )

90.97

I 18.3 1)

0.40

(i) Securities Premium Reserve

ri) Retained Earnings

iii) Other Comprehensive lncome

Securities Premiunl Reserve

AL

As at

31

As at

31 March 2023Particulars

90.97 9A.91

the

ng ba ance

Movement d

balance
90.97

-4-?*-J10.97

?

iro
,F

il Baiances with banks

4.74

10.10,000.0(

13.



Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory inlormations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Retained earnings

Len;el Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U72900W82001PTC093088

Particulars
As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Openrng balance

Proflt for the year

(18 2s)

(0.05)

(20.s1)

2.26

Closing balance (18,31) (18.2s)

(ili) Other Comprenensive lncome

Particulars
As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

opening balance

Profit for the vear 0.40

Closine balance 0.40

11, Borrowings

Particulars
As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Non- Current

Unsecured Loans (Repayble on demand)

nter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 556.06 606.78

TOTAL 5s6.06 606.78

lnter Corporate Deposits from re ated parties are takcn from llolding Co. Lee & Nee Softwares ( Exports) Ltd. (Wholly Owned)

12. Deferred Tax Liabilities ( Net)

Particu lars
As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Deferred Tax LrabLl ties 1.10 0.19

Particulars

AI 1.10

As at
31 March 2023

0.19

As at

31 March 2022

0.90

0.81

t.a2

1,.77 i.a2

0.80 0.83

080 0.83

a) Major Components of Deferred Tax !iability/Assets
Deferred Tax Liability

Property Plant & Equ pment

Post Emplovment Benef rts

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities

{b) Deferred tax Assetsinet)

Property Plant & Equipment

Post Employment Benefits

Gross Deferred Tax Assets

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) 0.91 0.19

As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

019
0 91

N et Deferred I ax Asset/l Lla b I rty) at the beg n nl ng of th e yea r

Gross Deferred Tax Liab litres

Gross Deferred fax Assr.ts

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(l.iabllity) at the end of the year 1.10 0.19

0.16

0.03

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended

37 March 202f
Year ended

31 March 2022

1.61

26.00%

229
26.04%

0.43

0.58

0.12

0.60

(0.57)

r.73 0.03

Profit Before Tax

Tax Rate

Expected lncome Tax Expenses

lncome tax Expenses of prlor years

Deferred Tax

Tax Differenae ratc

lncome tax Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

13. Other Non Current I iabilities

Parti€ulars
As at

31 Mar€h 2023

As at

31 Match 2Q22

Other Non-Current l"iabrlrtv 3.03

TOTAL 3.03

14. Other Current Liabilities

_-7, ntrt t
' 11 Mar.h 2022 'Particulars

As at

31 March 2023 i

{a) Deferred tax asset/liabil

b) The gross movement in deferred tax account for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

0.
p

Advances from c!stomers

1



Lensel Web Services Private Limited

CIN: U72900W82001PTC093088

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise

ii) Statutory liabilitles

iir) Employee beneflts payable

Other Current Llablllties

N ote:

I Ihe Mlnlstry of r;cTo, 5mal afd medtum enterpr ses has lssuecl an ofhce memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the micro and small enterprises

sho!lc1 ntention in thetr correspondence with lts customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing ofthe Memorandum in accordance with the

'Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprise Development Act, 2006 ('the Act'). Accordingl\/, the disclosure in respect of the amounts paYable to such enterprises has been made

in the financlal statements based on the information received and available with the Company

(iil Based on the lnformatlon / documents avai able with the Company, no interest provisions / payments has to be made by the Company to micro enterprises and small

enterprises credltors and thus, no related disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprlses Development Act, 2006 are made ln these

accounts.

3.71,

3.05

1.43

3.48

2.55

1..27

*-"{."

.}

8.30 7.31



ummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informations for the year ended 31 lVlarch 2023

15. Revenue from

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U72900W82001 PTC093088
b Services P Limited

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022Particulars

41.7748.40Saie of Software Services (ITES)
41.7748.40TOTAL

16. Other income :
Year ended

31 March 2023
Year ended

31 March 2022Particulars

31.93

0.27

28.70

4.29

i) lnterest lncome:
- from others
ii) Other Non Operating lncome
- Other lncome

32.2032.99TOTAL

17. Employee benefits expense
Year ended

31 March 2023
Year ended

31 March 2022Particulars

37 10

004
2.64

37 80
J.O5
0.87

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

39.7842.32TOTAL

18. Depreciation and amortization expense
Year ended

31 March 2023
Year ended

31 March 2022Particulars

142 0.40Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
1.02 0.40TOTAL

19. Other expenses
Year ended

31 March 2023
Year ended

31 March 2022Particulars

u.oz
0.02
5.1 5

0.85
185
2.17
0.62
105
1 16

1.46
0.30
2.45
005

360

*6

-2.:'l?ii;':'*

063
007
1.22
2.35
0.01

560
003
2.34
2.16
070
1.60
0.14
2.47
030
2.47
005

0"17

0.60

t.c/
005
143
010

Power & Fuel

Repairs & Maintenance
- Others
Rates & taxes
Business Promotion Exp.

Consultancy Charges
Cost to lnvestment Exp

Communication Exp
- Telephone Exp.

Bank Charges & Commission
Customer Support
Rental Charges
Conveyance
Travelling Exp
Referral Fee Paid
Printing & Stationery
Facebook exp.

I Other Expenses
I lnternal Audit Fees
I

I Legal Expenses
Audit Fees (Refer Note 19a)

27.98TOTAL

*
eEC0 .{0

t



Lensel Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U72900W82001 PTCo93088

148 Camac Street Kolkata-700017
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

20 Commitmonts and Contigents Liabilities
The Commitments and Contingent Liabilities during the year is NIL (PY is NIL)

21 Related Party Disclosure'
lrrformation on Rclated Party transactions as required by lnd AS-24 for the year ended 3"1 March 2023

(a) List Of Related Parties
M P

Relative of Personnel

Enterprise overwhich key Managerial Personnel is able to excersie significant influence

Enterprise overwhich key lr,4anagerial Personnel is able to excersie significant influence

Transaction

Note. During the year ended no amounts written off and written back from/to related parties

Balance with related rties

22 Per share

23 Financial Risk Management

l-he Conrpapy's operational activities expose to various financial risks i.e. market risk, credit risk and risk of liquidity. The Company

realizes that lsks are inherent and integral aspect of any business. The primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial

markets anci see k to rnrnimize potential adverse effects on its financral performance. This note explains the sources of the risk which

the entity is e xposr:d and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact on the financial statements

Name of the Related Party Relationship

Arpita Gupta
Vikash Kamani
F arzana Chowdhury

Director
Director
Director

Name of the Relatod Party

Rituraj Shares and Securities Ltd

Rituraj Sharcs and Securities

Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction
Year Ended

March 31,2023
Year Ended

Match 31,2022

Arpita Gupta
Arpita Gupta
Farzana Chowdhury

Legal Fees
Reimbursement of Expenses
Remuneration

244
300

6.48

2.40

3.00
596

Name of Related Party Nature of Balance
As at March

31, 2023
As at March

31,2022

Loan frorn Lee & Nee Softwares (Exports)

Ltd

Payables 556.06 606.78

Shares Ltd Receivables 40.91 40.91

Riturai Sha'cs cnd Securities Receivables 36 99 36.99

Faftana Chowdhury Payables 0.52 0.48

Particulars
Year Ended

March 31, 2023
Year Ended

March31,2022
Net profitable attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during lhe year

Earnings pe r share basic and diluted (in INR)

Face Value of Equity Share

(0 06)
10,000

(0.60)

100.00

--a- z.tt)
10,000
23.00

100.00

Related



Lensel Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U72900W82001 PTC093088
'l48 Camac Street Kolkata-700017
Summary of signiflcant accounting policies and other explanatory informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)
a. Market Risk

l\4arket Risk is thc risk of potential adverse change in the Company's income and the value of the networth arising from the
movement in foreign exchange rates, interest rates or other market prices.The Company recognises that the effective management of
market risk is essential to the maintenance of stable earnings and preservatlon of shareholder value. The objective of market risk
management to manage and control market risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising the overall returns.

b. lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. I'he Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the long{erm debt
obligations with floatrng interest rates.
The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of borrowings and equity.

c. Price Risks
Price risk is the risks lhat the fair value of a financial instrument wiil fluctuate due to changes in the market traded price. lt arises from
the financial assets such as investment in equity instruments such as bond , mutual funds etc. The Company is exposed to price risk
mainly from investments carried at FVOCI which are valued using quoted prices in active markets .

d, Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company, The Company's exposure to the credit risk is

influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents , trade receivables and financial assets measured at cost, The Company continousiy
monitors defaults of customers and their counterparties and incorporates this information into credit risk controls. Credit risk related to
cash and cash equivalerrts and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits. Other
financial assets measured at amortised cost excluding deposits of rent. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed
by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continously, while at the same time internal control system in place to ensure the
amounts are within the defined limits.

Assets are writte rr off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor declaring bankruptcy or litigation decided
against the Company. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce
repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Trade Reccivablcs:-
The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimates of incurred losses in respect of trade receivables
. The allowance account rn respect of trade and other receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Company is satisfied
that no recovery of the amount owing is possible. At that point, the financial asset is considered irrecoverables and the amount
charged to the allowance account is wriiten off against the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset.

As the Comparry ctoes not hold any collateral , the maximum expense to credit risk for each class of financial instrument is the
carrying amount of that class of financial instrument presented on the statement of financial posjtion. lmpairment of trade receivables
is based on expccted credit loss model ( simplistic approach) depending upon the historical date, present financial conditions of
customers and anticipated regulatory changes. Company does not hold any collateral in respect ofsuch receivables.

(ii) Financial lnstrumonts and Cash Deposits:-
Credit risk relatL.d to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying
bank deposits. Other financial assets measured at cost excluding deposits on rent. Credit risk related to these other frnancial assets is
managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place
ensure amounts are within specified limits.

(iii) Credit risk exp'osure :-
This risk is conrmon to all investors who invest in bonds and debt instruments and it refers to a situation where a particular
bond/debenture issuer is unable to make the expected principal payment interest rate payment, or both. Similarly, a lender bears the
risk that the borror,ve r may default in the payment of contractual interest or principal on its debt obligation, or both. The entity
continuously monrtors defaults of the customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk control.

t:i
('-



Lensel Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U72900W82001 PTC093088

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(e) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk ls the rtsk that the Company willface in meeting its obligation associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing

liquidity is to ensure thal lt will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company maintalned a cautious Iiquidity strategy , with positive cash balance through out the years ended 31 lvlarch 2023 and 3'1 [/]arch 2022. Cash flow

from operaling activlties provides funds to service lhe financial liabilities on a day-to day basis. The company regularly monltors the rolllng forecasts to ensure

It has sufficie;t cash on an going basis to meet operational requirements . Any shorl term surlpus cash generated over and above the amount required for

working capitai management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is nvested

in inlerest bearing term cleposits and other highly marketable instruments with appropriate maturities to optimise the returns on the investments while ensuring

the sufficlent liquidity to meet its liabilities.

l\4aturitv profIle,o,l_!Uto!giAl lE!]lrl]g!
The table below ana yse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities

As at March 31,2022 0-1 vear 1 -5 year >5 years Total

Borrowings
Oiher Current Llabi i1 es

606.78 606.76

606.78 606.78

(f) Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management , capital includes issued equity share capital, share prelmum and all otner equily reserves attr butab e to

equity share holders of the Company. The primary objective of the capltal management is to maximise shareholder value's

The Cornpany mana!les its capltal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requiremenls of the financiai

convenants. To malntain or adjust the capital structure , the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders , return on capltal to shareholders or

issue of new shares.

24 Segment Repofting
As per the requirments of IND AS-108, " Segment Reporiing" , no disclosures are required to be made since the Company activities consists of a single

business segment i.e, lnformation & Technology.

25 Corporate Soclal Responsib lity is not applicable to the Company.

As at March 31,2023 0-'1 year 1 -5 year >5 years Total

Borrovr'ings

Other Currert Llab lt1 es

556.06 556 06

556.06 556.06

*6



Lensel Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U72900W82001 PTC09308B

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

t ' (All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

26 (i)Fair Value Measurement
a) Valuation principles

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transactions between market participants at the measurement date.

The value and fair value of instruments are as follows:-

c) Fair value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at amortised cost and forwhich fairvalues are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used, in determining the fair value , the Company has classified its financial
instruments into three levels prescribed underthe accounting standard . An explanation of each levei follows underneath.

Level 1:- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2:- Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability , either directly or
indirectly .

Level 3.- lnputs for aEsets or liabilities that are not associated on observable market date (unobservable input).

(ii) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:-
(a) Long terrr fixed rates recpivables/ borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on the parameters such as interest
rates and creditwofihiness of the customers and the risk characteristic of the financed project. Based on the evaluations,
allowances are taken into account for the expected losses of these receivables.

(b) The fair value of the loans from banks and financial liabilities as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting future cash flows using the rates currently available for debt on similar terms , credit risk and remaining
maturities. -[heir valuation requires managment to use observable lnputs in the model , management regularly assessses a

Particu lars Note As at March 31 2023 As at March 31 2022

,o o7

41 .34
276.09

3.00

12.69

41.44
312 80

44.45

350.40 411.38

6.2
4.2&6.1

4.3
4.1

11

350.40

556.06

 ',t't.38

ouo. / t

Financial assets

a) Measured at amortised cost
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents
(ii)Trade recervables
(iii) Loans
(iv) lnvestment in uquoted equity shares
(iv) Other Financial Assets

b) Measured at fair value through OCI
(i) lnvestment in quoted equity shares
(ii) lnvestment in unquoted equity shares

c) Measured at fair value through PL
(i) lnvestment in mutual fund

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowing s

Total Financial Liabilities 556.06 606.78

range of reasonably possible for those significant unobservable inputs and determlnes the imapct on the fair value
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Lensel Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U72900W82001 PTC093088

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

29 Other Additional Regulatory Information as per Schedule lll

(a)

informations for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

rh\ Relationship with Struck off Companies : The Company do not have any transactions with Company's struck off during the period
ending 31st March,2023 and also forthe period ending 31st lttarch,2022.

Details of Benami Property held : The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending(c) againsttheCompanyduringtheperiodending3lstl\.4arch,2023andalsofortheperiodendrng3lstl\4arch,2022forholdingany
Benami property

(d) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) : The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction
which is yet to be regislered with ROC beyond the statutory period, during the period ending 31st Nlarch, 2023 and also for the period
ending 31 st llarch, 2022.

{e) DetailsofCryptoCurrencyorVirtual Currency TheCompanyhavenottradedorinvestedinCryptocurrencyorVirtual Currency
duflng the period ending 31st [v'1arch, 2023 and also for the period ending 31st l\,4arch, 2022.

(D Utilisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium :

l, The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities
(lntermediaries) with the understanding that the lntermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) orovide any guarantee, security or
the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
ll. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the
understandlng (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

30
Financials have been prepared after rncorporating adjustments for regrouped/ rearranged retrospectively , where necessary, to
conform to the current year's presentation.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lenset Web Services Private Lirnited LenSgl lVgb

LenselWeb Services Pvt. Ltd.
For N H Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Number:0327511E Arpita Gupta
Director
(DlN:02839878)

Dlrector
(DlN : 03061 122)

129175

Rt lq t+q rShv 
^,P 

w 1a6 t

Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income :The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as jncome during the period ending 31st l\,4arch, 2023 and also for the period ending
31 st A,4arch, 2022 in lf'e tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1 96'l (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions
of the Income Tax Act. 1 961 ).

-h4k .t^*f\t'

Lrd.

Date: 26th May,2023

Director


